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Board of Governorc of the Federa! Reserue System

Annua Report of Ho d ng Compan es-FR Y-6

Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1XA) of the Bank This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. S 1844(c)(1XA)); sections 8(a) nies, toptier savings and loan holding companies, and U.S. inter-
and13(a)ofthelnternational BankingAct(12U.S.C.SS3106(a) mediate holding companies organized under U.S. law, and by
and 3108(a)); sections 11(aX1), 25, and 25A of the Federal any foreign banking organization that does not meet the require.
Reserve Act (12 U.S.C. SS 248(a)(1), 602, and 61'ta); and sec- ments of and is not treated as a qualifying foreign banking orga-
tions113, 165,312,618,and809of theDodd-FrankAct(12U.S.C. nization under Section 211.23 of Regulation K (12 C.F.R. S

SS 5361, 5365, 5412, 1850a(cX1), and 5468(bXl )). Retum to the 211.23). (See page one of the general instructions for more detail
appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the original and the number of of who must file.) The Federal Reserve may not conduct or spon-copiesspecined 

;:'#i,i#:?f,1'#ffi[l"lis3il,i,JJ$':'ft'":"ffi:l:
OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Repoft of Holding Companies must be signed by
one director of the top{ier holding company. This individual should
also be a senior ofiicial of the top-tier holding company. ln the event
that the top{ier holding company does not have an individual who is
a senior official and is also a director, the chairman of the board must
sign the report. lf the holding company is an ESOP/ESOT formed as
a corporation or is an LLC, see the General lnstructions for the
authorized individual who must sign the report.
t,Charles A. Rosebrough, lll.

Date of Report (totrtier holding company's fiscal year+nd):

December 31 2016

Name of the Holding Company Oiredor and Oftcial

Chairman of the Board
First Graham Bancoro. lnc.
Legalf itle of Holding Company

623 Elm StreetTrtle of the Hdding Company Diredor and Oficjal

attest that lhe Annual Repoft of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and conect to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
repod, the Reporter cedifies that it has the authority to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also ceftifies
fhat it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserye may assume, in the absence of a request for
confidential treatment submitted in aeordance with the Board's
'Rules Regarding Availability of lnformation," 12 C.F.R. Pad 261,
that the Repofter and individual consent to public release of all

Monlh/Day/Year

nla
Reporte/s Legal Entity ldentitier (LEl) (2GCharacter LEI Code)

Reporte/s Name, Street, and Mailing Address

(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / PO. Box

Graham TX 76450
City State ZgCode

Physical Location (if difreront from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be direcied:
Donna Goray Secretary- Treasurer
Name Trtle

940 521-3608
Area Code / Phone Number / Extension

940 549-2397
Area Cod€ / FAX Number

in the that individual donna, qoray@cierabank.com
E-meil Address

Signature of Director and nla
Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Date of

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RSSD ID
c.l

/tc1)c)0

inlormation, induding suggestlons for reducing this burden lo: Secretar, Board of Govemo6 of the Federal Resere System, 20lh and C Sbeets, NW Vvashington, DC 20551, and to the
Offce of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Prcjecl (7100{297), \,Vashington, DC 20503 

1i//2016

l"|AR 2 g lt,l
NIC Ui\JIT

For holding ampanies not registered with the SEC-
lndicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:

E is included with the FR Y-6 report
f] wiil be sent under separate @ver
E is not prepared

0ENo

l=Yes 0
!s confidontlal treatment requested for any portlon
of thls report submls3ion?....
!n accordance with the General lnstructions for thlr rcpo.t
(check only one),

'1. a lsttcrJuititylng thlo r€quest is being provlded along
wfth the report ....,,,.,.

2. a letterJustilying thia roquest has been provlded

NOTE: lnformaton for whlch confldsntfal treatflent l! being
requostad muat be provlded separately and labeled
as "confldentla!."

tr
separately.......



EfilbitrA

Ciera lBa rlt, Finst Brahaltr StatutW Trust l, and' Firct iln Graham Company ane allL100% orne-d by patrent, First

Graham Bancorp,lnc.

rfutt 6rahem, eaniolp. lne.

aElatram,TEqs

h@rpere3ad in Tex85

lEli tlooe

Falst Gf.di.m Sdiltory Thlst I

It illlanItolL Pe{amre
lnooitblated h oitlaweG

!0016

lEu tlone,



-{,too6
a9o*6
o>
o Ei'

6O
9,;
ilE,}'a
io
9e
tro6E
o-
eg5A6=
;+6
59
XE:o
E*On;a
oli9o>
6-

:D
H3
=@.d>o2
o6,o
B,
E!

d2

OBqts
*o
7\l
!ao
@=ro
B;\,
Eb
ND93{''t

N tsI'
"16
==16e ilg! xtQ-

= o16'ool!3.qf19
e illo =. Iql:t<
d819.
d =1,eilEoSla
='o19+;l;6 Plrm +lE
o=oo
<oot
c,:
tsE
oO
o5
EO
=a
=o-5 o

o

3
o
D
o

=o
o

6't

Eo
a.
oq
r
D
o-
€

EBF?iE
r q iE +;
- +0 

=@
€ ?r*r+E:;d
E+_=e l
iaa'+a
ti3+4
_.o e 3 0666f1::95=
a33s5
5 - l a'=mog-.f,i-5056
='-9QeB gE: q

SgsBE'
d=qectF[;;'':
o60ii='

EE ii r
s5 i6 s
EaBEIeE'BEe.
iii.>95Siaoq

=o93E:Pg
Ad^-s=
oPooP
f -c -dP3B
l Lf r

Etsif
-. = t65-D6

=ils =:o od-
E*eFu >goi*Es6'=a>sooBq?Bs
ifJor' :iEI o3
: ilr; #s6 1ao a+E 3e3' *E
GODq 8{n 5sc. :+2. 6'
o=:as:
d '@-

56'
r>-o='m2Fce.3
<fod
EA31oli*
=cP*

6

e'o
cIo
oo
d
3
P

=!
=4
m

o
E
3o
f
o
@e
o
oa
c

o
E
Eo
mo
o
g
E
f

m

I
-{e
c
l
G
d
o
oEo
o
=.o
f
o
e.oa
EoG
D

g
lG
o!e
o
it
@o
6
De
!oEo

=tyl
E 4i
o< d

E33
'l'ol3e!
9.=d
! =.DE gc

*Ea
oo
;3.EO
aov<@o
6q
98
-Eo<3d
!<coac
OaE-
l@:ooO3.=
co
6'naq
>oqo

Fr
O.o€9
o9.
aE
E6ida
-.c>6
-d
=oof
EO
rg: =89ad'
3s.o6.
O+
-o9:
DJ
cRioa-.of
=ar

3o4
o
P

z
o
n

-t -.1fo
T0ua.
<q
*;
aOo-8irf
fP
do<t
g!oo
9a
rfialr
*.8aE.
]D
ol
rO
o=
Ei -o

€E
+!oi
5*
9oqB
<9oE-
+3o=
iIuv
ff
oo
gE
d3
odEO
9o

=6o=a6

=o6*
\8
PO
oofo
=o>=
!Ds
60efo6

*=o=
6-

&goo
Sp

o-,
o
oto,

oe
!D
o
o
JD

oo
o

.!D

o

C

a
T
9o
c
=zc

o*oo
z
E
3
6o
o:o
E

I,
o
q
c
3
f

o
o
o

o
o
o
=o
o
f

o

ono
f
o

=o
o
o_
c
o

a
o

o!
E,;e

o- o- o
F

o- or ox or or C'o
D

It
N
@

No
o

N
o

No
6

N

No
6

N
o

No
6

@

No
6

N
N

No
6

N
@

No
6

N
U
No
6

sst
o3
D

T
E
o
l.
o

Tg
o
3.
o

a

=
o
3.
6

n
=
o
3.6o

ng

o
3.
6

T

=
6
3.
6

ag

o
3.
tu

-
=q
o
?
6'o
-ooe
o3oo

E
D

:l

ID

aro{
Eo

u
F
@{
!s

=()7o2
o-mmx
@v
z
11-

6
N{
@u!l
aou+
€ou
-{-
@u
z
11-

{o9
t-o
€
mv

oczo
@v
zo-

55
@6uN9
0mz
-.1oz
@-
zo-

N
6oo5
N
9r
@v
oz
@
v

zr)-

u5
@o:
c
@v
m

@v
z
oa

o
Bo
o
!9

troo
@v
z.)-

o
N
!
@ug
or-
@

z
^

E
T

0
!
l^
o
I

='o
E
o
2o
I
o

lo{o
a

N
@
!.
C
-{m

8

No
c
3
3

o

@o
r)7o
I
@
mu
uo
o

N

€
m
-{
o

{̂u
m
q

woo
m

-{
0m
!
m

-{vmm
-l

@q
o
o
CI-
=o-
€

@{{

o

t

co
!

oNu
r
E
-l-6
mI

6
o

oc
o

-6xo-
r)-m
mx

I

Iov
{ov
-{-
Ix

I

5
=mF

o
Czo
i

o
mz
-.{o
=

{x

E,
oz

-{x

cq,
v
m

i

Eoo

r
=

n

6
D
o

!uo(}ru

\.1
CN

oN

\Juo
N
O

{o
No
ts

!o
F
N
!

!o
N
N{

{oIo
!o
Fq
o

E
8co

o
mz{o2

-
v
F

z{

o
mz{o2

0rzio2
r)x

o
m2
-{o
z.

!
uxr-

oc
z.
6)

noc

Cz
-{mo
-{
-{r

Cz
-{mo
-t
I
m

cz{m0
-{
--.t
m

Cz
-{m0
-{
-{m

Cz
-{m0
-{
+
m

cz{
m0
q
-t{
m

Cz
-{mo
-{
+o

Cz
-{m0
-{
I
m

o
EI
I

5
@o
@
!

N{o
N

No
@

z
o
-oo
s.
oq

N5
o
@s

5ao
uo

5u
Nu5
m

No
@

nI6
c
==
3t

!

o
m
B
@

zx

{

nr
v

@

z
^

a)
r-
@

zx

z
o
voo
-'oo

o
m,
E
Dzx

o
m-
@

zx

o
m-
@

zx

N

o
m-
@

zx

o

.)
m-
@

z
^

o
o
2
E
Ir
ID

I

=o0c
o

o

U
N{ouq

U
N{euu

U
N
!
6uu

@
N{6
u

U
N{6uu

U
N{ouu

N
!
@uu

u
N{&uu

-o
Dc
o
6
E
-
0
I

oo
3
3o
=d



Form FRY-6 

First Graham Bancorp, Inc. 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016 

Report Item 3: Securities holders Exhibit B 

(I)(a)(b)(c) and (2)(a)(b)(c) 

Current securities holders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote as of Securities holders not listed in 3(l)(a) through 3(1)(c) that had ownership, control or holdings of 5% or 
fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 more with power to vote during the fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 

(l)(a) (l)(b) (l)(c) (2)(a) (2)(b) (2)(c) 
Name Country of Citizenship Number and Percentage of Name Country of Citizenship Number and Percentage of 
City, State, Country or Incorporation Each Class of Voting City, State, Country or Incorporation Each Class of Voting 

Securities Securities 

Cecilia Ann Peavy Hindman 

Dallas, TX USA 8,752 2.15% Common NONE 

Stanley H. Peavy, III lrrev Trust 

Cecilia Ann Peavy, Trustee 

Dallas, TX USA 14,000 3.44% Common 

Erin Colleen Hindman, Minor 

Cecilia Ann Peavy, Guardian 

Dallas, TX USA 260 .06% Common 

Mia Bridget Hindman 

Cecilia Ann Peavy, Guardian 

Dallas, TX USA 260 .06% Common 

Total Cecilia Peavy Hindman 23,272 5.71% Common 

 



Report Item 3: Securities holders Exhibit B 
( l )(a)(b)(c) and (2)(a)(b)(c) 

Form FR Y-6 

First Graham Bancorp, Inc. 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016 

Current securities holders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote as of 
fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 

Securities holders not listed in 3(1)(a) through 3(1)(c) that had ownership, control or holdings of5% or 
more with power to vote during the fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 

(l)(a) 
Name 
City, State, Country 

Richard Kyle Peavy 

Graham, TX, 

Cecilia Ann Peavy lrrev Trust, 

Richard Kyle Peavy, Trustee 

Dallas, TX 

' 

Brian Fenno Peavy Irrev Trust, 

Richard Kyle Peavy, Stanley H. 

Peavy, III and Cecila Peavy 

Hindman, Trustees 

Graham, TX 

Total Richard Kyle Peavy 

(l)(b) 
Country of Citizenship 
or Incorporation 

USA 

USA 

USA 

(l)(c) 
Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting 
Securities 

9,348 2.30% Common 

14,000 3.44% Common 

14,000 3.44% Common 

37,348 9.18% Common 

(2)(a) 
Name 
City, State, Country 

(2)(b) 
Country of Citizenship 
or Incorporation 

(2)(c) 
Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting 
Securities 



Form FR Y-6 

First Graham Bancorp, Inc. 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016 

Report Item 3: Securities holders Exhibit B 

( 1 )(a)(b )( c) and (2)(a)(b )( c) 

Current securities holders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote as of Securities holders not listed in 3(1)(a) through 3(l)(c) that had ownership, control or holdings of 5% or 
fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 more with power to vote during the fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 

(l)(a) (l)(b) (l)(c) (2)(a) (2)(b) (2)(c) 

Name Country of Citizenship Number and Percentage of Name Country of Citizenship Number and Percentage of 
City, State, Country or Incorporation Each Class of Voting City, State, Country or Incorporation Each Class of Voting 

Securities Securities 

Stanley H. Peavy, III 

Graham, TX USA 10,858 2.67% Common 

I 

Richard Kyle Peavy, Irrev Trust, 

Stanley H. Peavy III, Trustee 

Graham, TX USA 14,000 3.44% Common 

Ivy Challen Peavy, Minor 

Stanley H. Peavy, III, Guardian 

Graham, TX USA 260 .06% Common 

Stanley H. Peavy, IV, Minor 

Stanley H. Peavy, III, Guardian 

Graham, TX USA 260 .06% Common 

Total Stanley H. Peavy, III 25,378 6.23% Common 



Form FR Y-6 

First Graham Bancorp, Inc. 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016 

Report Item 3: Securities holders Exhibit B 

(l)(a)(b)(c) and (2)(a)(b)(c) 

Current securities holders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote as of Securities holders not listed in 3(l)(a) through 3(l)(c) that had ownership, control or holdings of5% or 
fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 more with power to vote during the fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 

(l)(a) (l)(b) (l)(c) (2)(a) (2)(b) (2)(c) 
Name Country of Citizenship Number and Percentage of Name Country of Citizenship Number and Percentage of 
City, State, Country or Incorporation Each Class of Voting City, State, Country or Incorporation Each Class of Voting 

Securities Securities 

Charles A. Rosebrough, III 

Graham, TX USA 28,511 7.00% Common 

Nancy King Rosebrough 

Graham, TX USA 28,511 7.00% Common 

Jane R. Gilcrease 

Fort Worth, TX USA 7,939 1.95% Common 

Jane R. Gilcrease, lrrev Trust 

C.A. Rosebrough, IV., Trustee

Fort Worth, TX USA 7,250 1.78% Common 

Charles A. Rosebrough, IV 

Fort Worth, TX USA 8,544 2.09% Common 

C.A. Rosebrough, IV., lrrev Trust

Mary Rosebrough, Trustee

Fort Worth, TX USA 7,250 1.78% Common 

Mary Rosebrough 

Fort Worth, TX USA 7,938 1.95% Common 



FormFRY-6 

First Graham Bancorp, Inc. 

Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016 

Report Item 3: Securities holders Exhibit B 
(l)(a)(b)(c) and (2)(a)(b)(c) 

Current securities holders with ownership, control or holdings of5% or more with power to vote as of Securities holders not listed in 3(l)(a) through 3(l)(c) that had ownership, control or holdings of5% or 
fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 

(l)(a) 
Name 
City, State, Country 

Mary Rosebrough, Irrev Trust 

Jane Gilcrease, Trustee 

Fort Worth, TX 

Total Rosebroue:h 

Bruce Stephens 

Graham, TX 

Total Bruce Stephens 

(l)(b) 
Country of Citizenship 
or Incorporation 

USA 

USA 

more with power to vote during the fiscal year ending 12-31-2016 

(l)(c) (2)(a) (2)(b) (2)(c) 
Number and Percentage of Name Country of Citizenship Number and Percentage of 
Each Class of Voting City, State, Country or Incorporation Each Class of Voting 
Securities Securities 

7,250 1.78% Common 

103,193 25.33% Common 

46,658 11.47% Common 

46,658 11.47% Common 
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Qaal;ty. Intqr;ry.

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Shareholders of
First Graham Bancorp,Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of First Graham Bancorp, Inc. and

Subsidiaries whichcomprisetheconsolidatedbalancesheetsasofDecember3l,20l6and20l5,andtherelated
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsi bility for the Financ ial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of First Graham Bancorp, lnc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31,2016 and 2015, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Oe*i, r(r"r^4 ( A, Pc
Abilene, Texas

March 7,2017

Certihed Public Accountants
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FIRST GRAHAM BANCORP, [NC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 3I, 2016 AND 20I5

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks
Time deposits with banks
Securities available for sale

Loans
Allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Premises and equipment, net
Cash value life insurance
Foreclosed assets
Coodwill
Restricted investments, carried at cost
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Demand deposits
Savings, NOW and money market deposits
Time deposits

Total deposits

Advances fiom Federal Home Loan Bank
Note payable
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest in junior

subordinated debentures
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note l6)
Shareholders' equity:

Capital stock, $.50 par value, 1,500,000 shares
authorized, 4l I ,l 86 issued, with 4,260 shares
held in treasury in 2016 and 2015

Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Treasury stock, at cost

Total shareholders' equity

2016

$ 24,448,963

46,'740,467

406,508,202
(7.875.428\

14,384,738
13,998,430

1,092,507
5,9'17,855
2,912,043
1,772,801

981.402

$ 143,949,533
171,257 ,103
I r3.269.6s8
428,476,294

10,03 1,164

6,186,000
221,643

3^766.358

201 5

$ 46,575,930
490,000

53,607,713

383,651,739
(7.347.600\

10,582,994
13,620,211
2,728,229
5,977,855
2,784,619
1,841,542
1.20t.945

$ 148,274,870
149,595,683
109.52s.399
407,395,952

398,632,774 376,304,139

$_5lo.2t1p80 $_5lrJr5-rz

37,110,966
348,429

6,1 86,000
r 85,670

3.722.9s9

448,681,459 454,949,976

205,593
t0,221,803
52,496,608

t87.047
63,1 I 1,05 t

205,593
10,221,803
49,365,041

1.823.294
61,615,731

( 0.s30) 0.530)

62.260.521 60.765.201

$_5ro.%r-980 $5L5JnL77Total Iiabilities and shareholders' equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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FIRST GRAHAM BANCORP, TNC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,20I6 AND 20I5

Interest income:
Loans (including fees)
Interest (net of amortization and accretion) on

investment securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt

Other restricted i nvestrnents
Deposits with other financial institutions

Total interest income

Interest expense:
Deposits
Other borrowings

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Other income:
Trust income
Service charges on deposit accounts
Other service charges and fees
Net realized gain on securities
Cain (loss) on sale of foreclosed assets
Eamings on cash value life insurance
Rental income
Other

Total other income

Other expense:
Salaries and employee benefits
Equipment and occupancy expense
Computer services
Legal and professional fees
Write-down on foreclosed assets
Other

Total other expense

2016 2015

$ 21,882,359 $ 21,740,1 08

(1,769)
1,303,329

70,257
140.542

1,5 14,107
387.294

254,441
1,623.411

61,345
46.122

1,3 I6.599
262.406

374,851
75'7,256
783,928

41,940
(23,195)
469,105
410.r63

55.356

8,490,545
2,413,303

853,919
487,637

23,394,718 23,725.427

1.901.401

21,493,317

( 9.000) (1.434.303)

20,964,317 20,712,119

578,624
716,712
805,944
21,633

264,588
467,381
346,199
122.681

3,323,762 2,869,404

8,543,804
2,212,660

569, I 30
333,962

77,660
2.501.553 2.706.919

14.238.769 14.952.318

$:1 ,049310 $___3-629201Net income

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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FIRST GRAHAM BANCORP, [NC.
CONSOLTDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPRETIENSTVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2016 AND 2OI5

20t6

Net income

Other comprehensive income:

Change in unrealized (depreciation) appreciation on
securities available for sale

Adjustment for gains realized on securities available
for sale and included in net income

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

2015

$ 10,049,310 $ 8,629,205

(1,614,6t4) 138,497

1.633) (41.940)

(1 6.247\ 96.5s7

$____8.4ri1.063 $___3J25J62

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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FIRST GRAHAM BANCORP, [NC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUTTY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2016 AND 2OI5

Capital
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earninss

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive Treasury
Income Stock Total

Balance,
January 1,2015

Net income

Distributions to shareholders
($17.00 per share)

$ 205,593 $10,221,803 S 46,636,262 $

- 8,629,205

t,726,737 $ (850,530) S 57,939,865

- 8,629,205

Unrealized appreciation on
securities available
for sale

Reclassification adjustment for
gain included in net income

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale oftreasury stock

Di stributions to shareholders
($14.50 per share)

Balance,
December 31,2015

Net income

Unrealized (depreciation) on
securities available
for sale

Reclassifi cation adjustment for
gain included in net income

205,593 10,221,803

138,497 138,497

(41,940) (41,940)

(5.900.426\

t,823,294 (850,530) 60,765,20t

- 10,049,3 l0

(1,614,614) (1,614,614)

(21,633) (21,633)

6_9 17.743) (6.9 7.743\

Balance,
December 31,2016 $__205193 $1o22L803 $_52-496-608 $__187-047 $__J850t30) $_@260t2r

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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FIRST CRAHAM BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3 I, 20 I6 AND 20 I 5

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for depreciation
Provision for loan losses
(Gain) loss on sales of foreclosed assets
Premium amoftization net of discount accretion on securities
Net realized gain on securities
Loss on disposalof premises and equipment
Write-down on foreclosed assets
Net increase in cash value life insurance
Decrease in accrued interest receivable
Decrease (increase) in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable
Increase in other liabilities

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net decrease in interest-bearing deposits in banks
Proceeds from sales and maturities of available-for-sale securities
Purchase of available-for-sale securities
Net increase in restricted investments, carried at cost
Net increase in loans
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sales offoreclosed assets

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash f'lows from financing activities:
Net decrease in demand deposits
Net increase in savings, NOW and money market deposits
Net increase (decrease) in tirne deposits
Repayment of notes payable
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and repayments
Distributions to shareholders

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and due from banks
Cash and due from banks, beginning ofyear

Cash and due from banks, end ofyear

2016 2015

$ r 0.049.3 l0 $ 8.629.20s

505,740
529,000

(264,588)
422,740
(21,633)

824
77,660

(378,219)
68,741

220,543
35,973
43.399

490,000
89,270,995

(84,441,103)
(127,424)

(22,857,635)
(4,308,308)
t.822.650

(4,325,337)
21,661,420
3,744,259
(348,429)

(27,079,802)

(22,126,967)
46.s7s.930

549,619
1,434,303

23,195
653,340
(41,940)
176,198

I .240.180 2.846.536

11,289,490 11,475,741

(320,523)
74.540

(45,t20)
(44,1l6)
387.040

3,675,000
114,979J24
(80,81 8,3 55)

( 1,105,000)
(38,563,937)
(1,264,458)

613.084

(11,626,966)
10,570,067

(17,823,947)
(357,t43)

36,891,655

20,744,639
25.831.291

(20,150,825) (2,484,342)

(69 17.743) (5 0.426\

(13 s.632) 11.7s3.240

s 24-448.957 $_46Jr5-930

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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FIRST GRAHAM BANCORP, [NC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 3I, 20 I6 AND 20 I 5

l. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies of First Graham Bancorp, Inc. (the Company) and subsidiaries conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and to general practices within
the banking industry. The Company was incorporated for the purpose of becoming a bank holding
company and provides full banking services.

Ciera Bank generates commercial (including agricultural), mortgage and consumer loans and receives
deposits from customers primarily in Young, Jack, Palo Pinto, Stephens, Denton, Tarrant, Parker, Collin
and Dallas counties and the surrounding areas.

Consolidation and ownerchip - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of First
Graham Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, I't in Graham Co. and Ciera Bank. All the
capital stock of First Security Bank, N.A. (FSB) and West Side Bank and Trust (WSBT) was merged into
First National Bank in Graham (FNB) prior to conversion to a state chartered bank. FNB made
application with the Texas Department of Banking to become a Texas state chaftered bank. The
application was approved and conversion was as of December 6,2013. Upon conversion the name was
changed to Ciera Bank. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated upon
consolidation.

First Graham Statutory Trust I (Trust), a statutory trust created under the laws of the state of Delaware,
is not consolidated and the investment in the trust is carried in other assets at $186,000, in accordance
with authoritative guidance. The Trust is a wholly-owned trust subsidiary of the Company. (See Note
e.)

Restrictions on cash and due from banks - Under regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve
Board, the Company was required to maintain average reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank.
The amounts of those reserye balances were $7,297,000 and $7,173,000 as of December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Time deposits with banks - Interest-bearing deposits in banks have maturities longer than three months
and are carried at cost.

Investment securities - Management determines the appropriate classification of debt securities at the
time of purchase. Debt securities are classified as available for sale or held to maturity. Securities
available for sale are those securities which the Company may decide to sell prior to their maturity in
response to change in interest rates, liquidity needs, or for other purposes. Securities available for sale
are reported at fair value. The net unrealized gain or loss on securities available for sale is reported as

accumulated other comprehensive income, a separate component of shareholders' equity, until realized.
Securities held to maturity are securities which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are reported at amortized cost. Management is no longer
classifoing security purchases as held to maturity.

Amortized cost of debt securities is adjusted for amoftization of premiums and accretion of discounts to
call or maturity, whichever is earlier, or in the case of mortgage-backed securities, over the estimated
life of the securities, computed by the interest method. The Company believes amortizing to the call
date rather than to maturity date is insignificant to the financial statements as a whole. Realized gains
(losses) on securities available for sale are included in other income and, when applicable, are reported
as a reclassification adjustment in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses on the sale of
securities are determined on a trade date basis, using the specific identification method.
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Declines in the fair value of individual held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost
that are other than temporary result in write-downs of tl-re individual securities to their fair value. The
related write-downs are included in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary
impairment losses, managernent considers (l) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value
has been less than cost, (2) the financial conditions and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the
intent and ability of the Cornpany to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to
allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

The Company's investrnent portfolio consists of traditional investments, substantially in U.S. Agency
securities, obligations of U.S. government sponsored enterprises and agencies, mortgage pass-through
securities, corporate stock, mutual funds and general obligation municipal bonds. Pricing for such
securities is generally readily available and transparent in the market. The Company utilizes
independent third party pricing seruices to value its investment securities. The Cornpany reviews the
prices supplied by the independent pricing services as well as the underlying pricing methodologies for
reasonableness and to ensure such prices are aligned with traditional pricing matrices. The Company
validates quafterly, on a sample basis, prices supplied by the independent pricing services by
comparison to prices obtained from other third party sources,

Loans and allowance for loan losses - Ciera Bank (the Bank) grants commercial, agricultural,
residential and consumer loans to customers primarily in Young, Jack, Palo Pinto. Stephens, Denton,
Tarrant, Parker, Collin and Dallas counties and surrounding areas. Although the Bank has a diversified
loan portfolio, their debtors' ability to honor their contracts is substantially dependent upon the general
economic conditions of the region. Loans that management lras the lntent and abiliry to hold for the
foreseeable future or until rnaturity or pay-off are reported at their outstanding principal balance adjusted
for any charge-offs and the allowance for loan losses. Interest is recognized over the term of the loan and

is accrued on the unpaid principal balance.

The Company has certain lending policies and procedures in place that are designed to maximize loan
income with an acceptable level of risk. Management reviews and approves these policies and procedurres

on a regular basis and makes changes as appropriate. Management receives and reviews periodic repofts
related to loan originations, quality, concentrations, delinquencies, nonperforming and potential problem
loans. Diversification in tlre loan portfolio is a means of managing risk associated with fluctuations in
economic conditions, both by type of loan and geographic location.

Commercial loans are underwritten after evaluating and understanding the borrower's ability to operate
profitably and effectively. Underwriting standards are designed to determine whether the bon'ower
possesses sound business ethics and practices and to evaluate current and projected cash flows to
determine the ability of the bonower to repay their obligations as agreed. Commercial loans are primarily
made based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and, secondarily, on the underlying collateral
provided by the borrower. Most commercial loans are secured by the assets being financed or other
business assets, such as accounts receivable or inventory and include personal guarantees.

Agricultural loans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to commercial loans. These
agricultural loans are based primarily on the identified cash flows of the borower and secondarily on the
underlying collateral provided by the borrower. Most agricultural loans are secured by the agriculture
related assets being financed, such as farm land, cattle or equipment and include personal guarantees.

Residential and commercial real estate loans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to
commercial and agricultural loans. These loans are underwritten prirnarily based on projected cash flows
and, secondarily, as loans secured by real estate. The repayment of real estate loans is generally largely
dependent on the successful operation of the property securing the loans, the business conducted on tlre
property securing the loan, or the cash flow of the borrower for residential real estate loans. Real estate

loans may be more adversely affected by conditions in the real estate markets or in the general economy.
The properties securing the Company's real estate portfolio are generally diverse in terms of type and
geographic location. This diversity helps reduce the exposure to adverse economic events that affect any
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single market or industry. Generally, real estate loans are owner occupied which further reduces the
Company's risk.

Consumer loan underwriting utilizes methodical credit standards and analysis to supplement the

Company's underwriting policies and procedures. The Company's loan policy addresses types of
consumer loans that may be originated and the collateral, if secured, which must be perfected. The
relatively small individual dollar amounts of consumer loans that are spread over numerous individual
borrowers also minimize the Company's risk.

The allowance consists of specific and general allocation components. The specific component relates to
loans that are classified as either doubtful, substandard or special mention. The allowance for loan losses

is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to
eanrings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of
a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. The Cornpany
performs periodic and systernatic detailed reviews of its lending portfolios to identifo credit risks and
assess the overall collectability of those porrfolios. The allowance on certain homogeneous loan portfolios
is based on aggregated portfolio segment evaluations. Management's periodic evaluation of the adequacy
of the allowance is based on the Bank's past loan loss experience, the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, the estimated value of any
underlying collateral and current economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it
requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The Company's residential and commercial real estate portfolios are comprised primarily of
homogeneous loans secured by residential and commercial real estate. The amount of losses incurred in
the homogeneous loan pools is estimated based upon how many of the loans will default and the loss in
the event of default. The Company estimates how many of the homogeneous loans will default based

on the individual loans' attributes aggregated into pools of homogeneous loans with similar attributes.
The attributes that are most significant to the probability of default and are used to estimate default
include the loan-to-value, borrower credit score, months since origination, geography and present

collection status. The estimate is based on the Company's historical experience with the loan portfolio.
The estimate is adjusted to reflect an assessment of environmental factors that are not reflected in the

historical data, such as clrarrges in real estate values, local and national econonries, underwriting
standards and the regulatory environment.

The allowance on the remaining portfolio segments (agriculture, commercial and consumer) is

calculated using loss rates delineated by risk rating and product type. Factors considered wlren
assessing loss rates include the value of the underlying collateral, the industry of the obligor, tlre
obligor's liquidity and other financial and qualitative factors. These factors are updated regularly lor
changes in economic and business conditions. Included in the analysis of these loan portfolios are

reserves which are maintained to cover unceffainties that affect the Company's estimate of probable
losses including economic unceftainty and large, single defaults.

Although we believe we use the best information available to make loan loss allowance determinations,
future adjustments could be necessary if circumstances or economic conditions differ substantially fronr
the assumptions used in rnaking our initial determinations. A further downturn in the economy and
employment could result in increased levels of non-performing assets and charge-offs, increased loan
provisions and reductions in income. Additionally, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our
allowance for loan losses and could require additions to the loan loss allowance based on tlreir judgment
on information available to them at the time of their examination.

Nonperfoming loans are reviewed in accordance with applicable accounting guidance on impaired loans

and troubled debt restructurings (TDRs). If necessary, a specific allowance is established for these
loans if they are deemed to be impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current
information and events, it is probable the scheduled payrnents of principal or interest will be

uncollectiblewhendueaccordingtothecontractualtermsoftheloanagreement. Factorscor,sideredby
lnanagement in detennining irnpairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of
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collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant
payment delays and paynrent shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management
detennines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking
into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the lerrgth

of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Inrpairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis
by the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the

loan's obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral for collateral-dependent loans.

For such loans that are also classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash

flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying
value of that loan, The general component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss

experience adjusted for qualitative factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover
uncertainties that could affect management's estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component
of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the
methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Cornpany does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment disclosures, unless such loans are subject to a restructuring agree ent.

The outstanding balance of residential real estate and real estate secured loans that is in excess of the
estimated property value, less estimated costs to sell, is charged off no laterthan the end of the rnonth in
which the account becomes 180 days past due. The estimated property value, less costs to sell, is

determined utilizing appraisals or broker opinions of the fair value of the collateral.

The outstanding balance of loans within the remaining loan segments (agriculture, commercial and
consumer) are charged off no later than the end of the month in which the account becomes I20 days
past due. For secured loans, accounts are written down to the collateral value. The fair value of the

collateral is estimated by management based on current financial information, inspections and
appraisals, For unsecured loans, the outstanding balance is written off.

Loans within all portfolio segments, except consurner, are generally placed on nonaccrual status and

classified as nonperforming at 90 days past due. Accrued interest receivable is reversed when a loan is

placed ot'l nonaccrual status. Interest collections o1r nonaccrual loarrs are applied as principal reductions.
These loans may be restored to accrual status when all principal and interest is current and full
repayment of the remaining contractual principal and interest is expected, or when the loan otherwise
becomes well-secured and is in the process of collection.

Loans whose contractual terms have been modified in a TDR and are current at the tirne of the
restructuring remain on accrual status if there is demonstrated perforrnance prior to tlre restructurirrg and
repayment in full under the restructured terms is expected. Otherwise, tlre loans are placed on
nonaccrual status and reported as nonperforming until there is sustained repayment performance for a

reasonable period, generally six months. TDRs that are on accrual status are repofted as performing
TDRs through the end of the calendar year in which the restructuring occurred or the year in which the
loans are retumed to accrual status. In addition, if accruing TDRs bear less than a market rate of interest
at the time of modification, they are reported as performing TDRs throughout the remaining lives of the

loans.

A troubled debt restructured loan is a loan which the Cornpany, for reasons related to a borrower's
financial difficulties, grants a concession to the borrower that the Company would not otherwise
consider. The loan terms which have been modified or restructured due to a borrower's financial
difficulty include, but are not limited to, a reduction in the stated interest rate; an extension of the

maturity at an interest rate below current market; a reduction in the face amount of the debt; a reduction
in the accrued interest; or re-aging, extensions, deferrals, renewals and rewrites. A troubled debt

restructured loan would generally be considered impaired.
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Indirect lending - The Bank maintains a lending program whereby automobile loans are purchased from
various dealers who have entered into agreements to participate. Dealers initiate the loan process and

forward the applications to the Bank for approval. The Bank reserves the right to approve or reject the
loans, depending on criteria as established by policy. Management believes underwriting standards and

established policies are structured to mitigate excessive risk with this type of lending. Consumer and
commercial loans that were a result of indirect lending totaled $2,735,009 and $5,271 ,681 at December 3 I ,

2016 and 2015, respectively.

Premises and equipment - Land is carried at cost and premises and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation. Gains and losses on sales and retirements are reflected in current operations.
Depreciation for financial reporting purposes is computed based on the estimated useful lives of assets

using the straight-line method. Costs incurred for maintenance and repair are expensed currently.
Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $505,740 and $549,619,
respectively.

Bank owned life insurance - Bank owned life insurance (BOLI) represents life insurance on the lives of
certain employees and former employees who have provided positive consent allowing the Company to be

the beneficiary of such policies. These policies are recorded at their cash surrender value, or the amount
that can be realized upon surrender of the policy. Income from these policies and changes in the cash

surrender value are recorded in earnings on cash value life insurance under other income.

Other assets - The Company accounts for business combinations under the purchase method of
accounting. Tangible and intangible assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recorded at fair value
on the purchase date. Intangible assets with finite useful lives continue to be amortized and goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amorlized but instead tested for impairment in accordance
with authoritative guidance. Impairment testing is performed annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. In making such determination, the
Company evaluates the performance, on an undiscounted basis, of the underlying businesses which gave
rise to such amount. [n case of irnpairment, the recorded costs would be written down to fair value on a
discountedbasis. TherewasnoimpairmentrecordedfortheyearsendedDecember3l,2016or20l5.

Other identifiable intangible assets recorded by the Company represent the future benefit associated with
the acquisition of core deposits and are being amortized over three years, utilizing a method that
approximates the expected attrition of the deposits.

The Bank, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) system, is required to maintain an

investment in capital stock of the FHLB in an amount equal to the greater of 1%o of its outstanding home
loans or 5%o of advances from the FHLB. No ready market exists for the FHLB stock, and it has no
quoted market value. The stock is carried at $1,863,400 and $l ,727,300 as of December 31,2016 and
2015, respectively and is included in Restricted investments. FHLB stock is pledged as collateral for
FHLB advances. (See Note 7.)

The Company also holds The Independent BankersBank and Federal Reserve stock totaling $722,800 and

$325,843, respectively as of December 31, 2016 and$731,476 and $325,843, respectively as of December
31,2015. There is no readily determinable fair value arrd there are contractual restrictions on the sale or
transfer of the stocks, These stocks are carried at cost in Restricted investments and evaluated for declines
in value.

Foreclosed assets - Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are to be sold and are initially
recorded at fair value less estimated selling cost at the date of foreclosure. All write-downs based on the

asset's fair value at the date of acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses. After foreclosure,
property held for sale is carried at the lower of the new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell and

depreciation is not recorded. Impairment losses on property to be held and used are measured at the

amount by which the carrying amount of the property exceeds its fair value and depreciated based on the

remaining useful life. Costs of siguificant property improvements are capitalized, whereas costs relating to
holding property are expensed. Valuations are periodically perfonned by management, and any
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subsequent write downs are recorded as a charge to other real estate expense, if necessary, to reduce tlre
carrying value of the property to the lower of cost or fair value minus estimated costs to sell.

Long-term assets - Premises and equipment and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when
events indicate their carrying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows. If
impaired, the assets are recorded at discounted amounts,

Loan origination fees and costs - Fees and costs associated with originating loans are recognized in
income generally in the period in which fees were received and/or costs were incurred. Under generally
accepted accounting principles, such fees and costs generally are deferred and recognized over the life of
the loan as an adjustment of the yield. For the two years presented in the statements of income,
management believes not deferring such fees and costs and anrorlizing them over the life of the related
loans does not materially affect the Company's financial position or results of operations.

Loan-servicing rights - The cost of loan-servicing rights acquired is amortized in proportion to, and over
the period of, estimated net servicing revenues. When participating interests in loans sold have an average
contractual interest rate, adjusted for normal servicing fees, that differs from the agreed yield to the
purchaser, gains or losses are recognized equal to the present value of such differential over the estimated
remaining life of such loans. The resulting excess servicing fees receivable or deferred servicing revenue
is amorlized over the estimated life using a method approximating the interest rnethod.

The unamortized cost of loan-servicing rights purchased, the excess servicing fees receivable, and the
amortization thereon is periodically evaluated in relation to estimated future net servicing revenues, taking
into consideration changes in interest rates, current prepayment rates, and expected future cash flows. The
carrying value of the servicing portfolio should be evaluated by estimating the future net servicing income
of the portfolio based on management's best estimate of remaining loan lives. The Bank had no loan
servicing rights at December 31,2016 or 2015.

Transfers of assets - The Company accounts for transfers of financial assets by recognizing the financial
assets it controls and the liabilities it has incurred, derecognized financial assets when control has been

surrendered and derecognized liabilities when extinguished. The statement also distinguishes transfers of
financialassets that are sales from transfers of financial assets that are secured bon'owings.

Loans held for sale - Loans held for sale are those loans the Company has the intent to sell in the
foreseeable future. They are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Net unrealized losses.

if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. Gains and losses on sales of
loans are recognized at settlement dates and are determined by the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying value of the loans. The Company had no loans held for resale at December 3 l, 2016 and

2015.

Off-balance-sheet financial instruments - In the ordinary course of business the Bank has entered into
off-balance-slreet financial instruments consisting of stand-by letters of credit and commitnrents on lines of
credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded.

Guarantees that are not derivative contracts are to be recorded on tl're Company's consolidated statement
of financial condition at their fair value at inception, in accordance with authoritative guidance. For the
two years presented in the consolidated balance sheets, management believes not recording the liability
related to guarantees does not materially affect the Cornpany's financial position or results of
operations.

Trust serryices - Assets held by the Cornpany in fiduciary or agency capacities for customers are not
included in the accompanying statements of condition, since such items are not assets of the Cornpany.
Fees and expenses associated with providing trust services are included in the statements of income.

Profit sharing plan - The Company has a 401-K defened compensation plan available to all eligible
employees. Contributions amounted to $219,549 and $212,399 in2016 and 2015, respectively, which is

included in salaries and employee benefits expense.
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Advertising and promotions expense - Advertising and promotion costs are expensed as incurred. Total
advertising and promotions expense for the years ended December 31,2016 and 2015 was $261,242 and
$228,587, respectively.

Significant group concentrations of credit risk - Most of the Bank's activities are with customers
located in Young, Jack, Palo Pinto, Stephens, Tarrant, Denton, Parker, Collin and Dallas counties and

the surrounding areas. Notes 2 and 3 discuss the types of securities the Bank invests in and the types of
lending the Bank engages in. The Bank does not have any significant concentrations to any one
industry or customer.

The majority of cash and cash equivalents of the Corrpany are maintained with major financial
institutions in the United States. As such, interest bearing, non-transaction account deposits with these
financial institutions may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits. Management
believes that the risk of loss associated with such balances is minimal due to the financial strength of the
correspondent banks and counterparly financial institutions. The Company has not experienced any
losses in such accounts. In monitoringthis risk, the Company periodically evaluates the stability of the
financial institutions with which it has deposits, At December 31,2016 and 2015, the deposits, as

reported by banks, were$737,748 and $1,633,047, respectively.

Federal income taxes - The Company and its subsidiaries have elected S corporation status and, as such,
will no longer be liable for federal income taxes. Earnings and losses are included in the personal income
tax retums of the shareholders and taxed depending on their personal tax structure, The Company is

subject to the State of Texas tax on taxable margin. The margin tax was immaterial for the years ended
December 31,2016 and 2015. The tax is current and does not have a deferred tax component. The
Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before
2013 or Texas state tax examination by tax authorities for years before 2012. The Company recognizes
interest accrual on and penalties related to unrecognized tax positions in tax expense. During the year
ended December 3l ,2016 the Company recognized no interest and penalties.

Cash and cash equivalents - For purposes of presentation in the statements of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents include cash on hand, and amounts due from banks, including interest-bearing deposits in
banks with an original maturity of three months or less.

Compensated absences - Cornpensated absences for short-term disability pay have not been accrued

since they cannot be reasonably estimated. The Conrpany's policy is to recognize these costs when
actually paid.

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the repofted
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to
significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for losses on loans and the valuation of
real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans.

Date of management's review of subsequent events - Management has evaluated subsequent events
through March 7,2017 the date which the financial statements were available to be issued.

Recently issued authoritative accounting pronouncements - In May 2014, the FASB issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Reveru,te fiom Conlracts with Customers (Topic 606). This
guidance is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede substantially all
existing revenue recogrition guidance. The new standard's core principle is that a company will recognize
revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the

consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In

doing so, companies will need to use more judgment and make more estimates than under existing
guidance. These may include identifoing perfonnance obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of
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variable consideration to include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each

separate performance obligation. On July 9,2015, the FASB agreed to delay the effective date of the

standard by one year. Therefore, the new standard will be effective in the first quarter of 2018 and is not
expected to have a significant impact to the Cornpany's financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No.20l6-01 Financial Insfruments - Overall: Recognition and
Measuremenl of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendment has a number of provisions
including the requirements that public business entities use the exit price notion when measuring the fair
value of financial instruments for disclosure puryoses, a separate presentation of financial assets and

financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial asset (i.e. securities or loans
receivables), and eliminating the requirement for public business entities to disclose the methods and

significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to be disclosed for financial
instruments measured at amortized cost. The amendment is effective for annual and interim reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of the
amendment on the financial statements.

ln February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) intended to improve financial
reporting regarding leasing transactions. The new standard affects all companies and organizations that
lease assets. The standard will require organizations to recognize on the statement of financial condition
the assets and liabilities forthe rights and obligations created by those leases if the lease tenrs are more
than 12 months. The guidance also will require qualitative and quantitative disclosures providing
additional information about the amounts recorded in the financial statements. The amendments in this
update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,2018, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. The Company is evaluating the potential impact of the amendment on the Company's
financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326)
intended to improve financial reporting by requiring timelier recording of credit losses on loans and other
financial instruments held by financial institutions and other organizations. The standard requires an

organization to measure all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on
historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Financial institutions
and other organizations will now use forward-looking information to better inform their credit loss

estimates. The standard also requires enhanced disclosures to help investors and other financial statemettt
users to better understand significant estimates and judgments used in estimating credit losses, as well as

the credit quality and underwriting standards of an organization's portfolio.

These disclosures include qualitative and quantitative requirements that provide additional information
about the amounts recorded in the financial statements. Additionally, tlre standard amends the accounting
for credit losses on available-for-sale debt securities and purchased financial assets with credit
deterioration. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,

2020, including interim periods within those fiscal years. All entities may adopt the amendments in this
update earlier as of the fiscal years beginning after Decenrber 15,2019, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. An entity will apply the amendments in this update through a cumulative-effect
adjustrnent to retained eamings as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which the guidance is

effective (that is, a modified-retrospective approach). The Company believes the amendments in this
update will have an impact on the Company's financial statements and is working to evaluate the

significance of that irnpact.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging lssues Task Force)
and the American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants did not or are not believed by management to
have a material impact on the Company's present or future financial statements.

Reclassilication - Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2015 financial statements to conform to
2016 financial statement presentation. The reclassifications do not affect net income or shareholders'
equity.
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2. Investment securities

The amortized cost and estimated market value of securities as shown in the consolidated financial
statements at Decernber 31,2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Available-for-sale securities
2016

U.S. Agency securities
Mortgage-backed securities
State and municipal securities

Total

2015
U.S. Agency securities
Mortgage-backed securities
State and municipal securities

Due in one year or less

Due one to five years
Due five to ten years
Due after ten years

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Estimated

Market Value

$ 1,000,898
35,895

4s.703.674

$ $

$__45t$An $_____63rJ&r $_____450J11 L46J4!A67

$ 1,000,000
3,892,178

46.892.241

898
27

636.856
3,278

447.456

$
62,938

1.88s.839

251
102,957
22.275

$

Total $ 5fJ84Jt19 $---1548-7n $---l25rt83 $-53-607J13

Securities at amoftized cost of approximately $30,052,385 at December 31,2016 and $29,713,877 at

December 31,2015 were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or pennitted by
law. Estimated market values of pledged securities were $30,496,952 and $30,895,186 at December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

The amortized cost and estimated market value of securities at December 31, 2016, by contractual
maturity and expected maturity, are shown below. Maturities may differ from contractual maturities in
mortgage-backed securities because the mortgages underlying the securities may be called or repaid
without penalty.

Available for Sale

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Market Value

$ 484,802 $
10,1 00,737
22,829,961
13.098.774

484,836
10,171,485
23,009,184
13.039.067

46,514,274
39.146

46,704,572
35.895Mortgage-backed securities

$_4615r*420 $__46JA0A67

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities during 2016 were 52,738,945. Gross gains of
$83,489 and gross losses of $61,856 were realized on sales. Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale
securities during 201 5 were $106,252,412. Gross gains of S489,040 and gross losses of $447 ,100 were
realized on sales.
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Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at Decernber 31,2016 and 2015
aggregated by investrnent category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous
Ioss position, follows:

Less Than 12 Months l2 Months or Greater
Gross

Unrealized
Losses

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Available-for-sale securities

2016
Mortgage-backed securities
State and municipal securities

2015
U.S. Agency securities
Mortgage-backed secu riti es

State and municipal securities

Residential real estate
Agriculture
Commercial realestate
Commercial
Consumer
Overdrafts
Total loans
Allowance for loan losses

Market Value Market Value

$ $ $ 34,086
507.550433.950 1s.744.639

L_ ___433-950 S___15J44-639 $_______t6J84 $ _14r^636

$ 251 $ 999,749 $ $
102,957
21.023

3,278 $
13.506

1.252 79s.608
2,388,455
2.431.891

$_1103 $:u5lll $_____lzle&o s___34x13E1

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impainnent at least on a quafterly basis, and

more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to
(l) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its
investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

At December 31, 2016, the 36 debt securities with unrealized losses have depreciated approximately
2.69% from the Company's amortized cost basis. These securities are guaranteed by the U.S.
Government, other governments, or municipalities. These unrealized losses relate principally to current
interest rates for similar types of securities. In analyzing an issuer's financial condition, management
considers whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades
by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer's financial condition. As
management has the ability to hold debt securities untilmaturity, or forthe foreseeable future if classified
as available-for-sale, no declines are deemed to be other-than-temporary.

3. Loans

Loans at December 31,2016 and 2015 are comprised of the following:

20t6 201 5

$ 135,206,996
17,565,532

175,050,805
63,504,086
14,543,736

637.047
406,508,202

(7.875.428\

$ 136,318,096
12,354,138

149,839,259
61,509,738
23,528,260

102.249
383,651,739

(7.347.600\

Net loans s393-632J1A $_3I6JOLL39
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The following table sets forth information regarding the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the
year ended December 31,2016:

Residential
Real Estate Agriculture Commercial Consumer Total

Commercial
Real Estate

Allowance for loan losses

Beginning
balance$2,240,679$123,695$3,778,008$953,573$251,645$7,347,600

Provision (112,695) 68,949 364,559 210,398 (2,211) 529,000
Recoveries 4,834 - 21,049 190,482 47,721 264,086
Charge-offs (s7.286\ 04-582\ fl 13.390) (265.258\

Ending balance L-2-W5J]2 L )92,@4 $-----4-f6-616 $--L259.821 5--183-765 $ ?-875t428

Ending balance allocated
to loans individually
evaluated for
impairment s s

Ending balance allocated
to loans collectively
evaluated for
impairment $-J-015-5i2 $----192-644 $--4J13-6Ll $ -l-059.E46 S-183J65 L-ft25l-l_8

Loans receivable

Ending balance allocated
to loans individually
evaluated for
impairment $ $ $ 3,712,353 $ 889,861 $ $ 4,602,214

Ending balance allocated
to loans collectively
evaluated for
impairment 135.206.996 17.565.532 171.338.452 62.614.225 r s. r 80.783 40 r.90s.988

Ending balance $131206J96 $-lll65J32 $--X5J50.805 $-63.504086 $-ll-160J83 $--4O0JAE2!2

The following table sets forth information regarding the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the
year ended December 3 l, 2015:

Residential
RealEstate Agriculture Commercial Consumer Total

Commercial
RealEstate

Allowance for loan losses

Beginning
balance $ 1,519,070 $ I2l,613 $ 3,725,749 S 694,673 S 314,806 $ 6,375,91I

Provision 743,323 2,082 225,055 307,081 156,762 1,434,303
Recoveries 12,952 105,965 23,467 142,384
Charge-offs (172-7961 (1 4.146) (243 -390\ 04.998)
Ending balance $--2240-619 L--i23-695 $----1J76-008 $----953J13 $----251315 $---1J47.600

Ending balance allocated
to loans individually
evaluated for
impairment s $_ _ ___. $________19tgt6 $_______6*063 s $_201009

Ending balance allocated
to loans collectively
evaluated for
impairment $--2249519 $----123-695 $----ff&-062 $---947J10 L 251.@15 $----i-l46l9l
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Residential
Real Estate Agriculture Commercial Consumer Total

Commercial
Real Estate

Loans receivable

Ending balance allocated
to loans individually
evaluated for
impairment S $ $ 3,210,060 $ 24,254 $ $ 3,234,314

Ending balance allocated
to loans collectively
evaluated for
impairment 136.318.096 12.354.138 146.629.t98 61.485.484 23.630.509 380.4t7.425

Ending balance $l.163t6J% $-12.3!L138 $--149.839258 $-6L509J3E $-23-610509 $--l83*6llJ39

The Company monitors credit quality within its portfolio segments based on primary credit quality
indicators, All of the Company's loans are evaluated using pass rated or specific allocation as the
primary credit quality indicator. The term specific allocation refers to those loans that are internally
classified or listed by the Cornpany as special mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. These assets pose
an elevated risk and may have a high probability of default or total loss.

The classifications of loans reflect a judgment about the risks of default and loss associated with the loan.
The Company reviews the rating on cred its montlr ly, Ratings are adjusted to reflect the degree of risk and
loss that is felt to be inherent in each credit as of each monthly reporting period. The methodology is
structured so that specific allocations are increased in accordance with deterioration in credit quality (and a
corresponding increase in risk and loss).

Credits rated special mention slrow clear signs of financial weaknesses or deterioration in credit
worthiness; however, such concerns are not so pronounced tlrat the Company generally expects to
experience significant loss within the short-term. Such credits typically maintain the ability to perform
within standard credit terms and credit exposure is not as prominent as credits rated more harshly.

Credits rated substandard are those in which the normal repayment of principal and interest may be, or
has been, jeopardized by reason of adverse trends or developments of a financial, managerial, economic
or political nature, or important weaknesses exist in collateral. A protracted workout on these credits is
a distinct possibility. Prompt corrective action is therefore required to strenglhen the Company's
position, and/or to reduce exposure and to assure that adequate remedial measures are taken by the
borrower. Credit exposure becomes more likely in such credits and a serious evaluation of the
secondary support to the credit is perforrned.

Credits rated doubtful are those in which full collection of principal appears highly questionable, and
which some degree of loss is anticipated, even though the ultimate amount of loss may not yet be certain
and/or other factors exist which could affect collection of debt. Based upon available information,
positive action by the Company is required to aveft or minimize loss. Credits rated doubtful are
generally also placed on nonaccrual.

Credits rated loss are those that are considered uncollectible and of such little value tlrat their
continuance as bankable assets is not warranted. This classification does not mean that the asset has

absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off
this basically worlhless asset even though partial recovery may be affected in the future.

Pass rated refers to loans that are not considered criticized. In addition to this primary credit quality
indicator, the Company uses other credit quality indicators for certain types of loans.
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The following table sets fortlr information regarding the intemal classification of the loan portfolio:

Pass
Special
Mention Total

December 31. 2016

Substandard Doubtful Loss

$ 122,389 $

6,780,3 86
1,926,278

Residential
real estate

Agriculture
Commercial

real estate
Commercial
Consumer

$ 135,084,607 $
17,565,532

169,270,419
61,577,808
15.180.783

$ - $ 135,206,996
- I 7,565,532

fivfi9)49 s

$ 135,717,398 $
12,354,138

s_8-829-053 s s $406J08.202

December 3 l. 2015

Residential
real estate

Agriculture
Commercial

real estate
Commercial
Consumer

$ 600,698 $ $ - $ 136,318,096
- 12,354,138

149,839,258
61,509,738
23.630.s09

141,53 I ,750
61,242,879
23.606.255

8,307,508
266,859
24.254

$flaas2an S

30-89 Days
Past Due

$-9-t99;Ir9

Total
Past Due

$ $ $-383-65L739

Recorded
Investment
>90 Days

Still
Accruins

The following table sets forth information regarding the delinquencies within the loan portfolio:

90 Days
and

Greater Current
Total
Loans

December3l.20l6

Residential
real estate

Agriculture
Commercial

real estate
Commercial
Consumer

$ 752,042 $

795,526
537,582
452.594

2,911,258
283,074

401

$ 752,042 $ 134,454,954 $ 135,206,996 $
- 17,565,532 17,565,532

3,706,784 1'.71,344,021
820,656 62,683,430

175,050,805
63,504,086
15.180.783

December 3 l. 2015

Residential
real estate

Agriculture
Commercial

real estate
Commercial
Consumer

3,741,641
550, I 26

1.728.590

4,253,990
574,215

r.807.166

145,585,268
60,935,523
2t.823-343

149,839,258
61,509,738
23.630.s09

452.995 14.727.788 401

L2-5i1J44 LXgtT]3 $_5J32A11 $A9!J15J25 $406.508202 $________40_t

s 1,424,829 $ l8,olo $ 1,442,83e_ trt;,,\l:0,,?trr r,?!,311,??3 $ 18,010

512,349
24,089
'18.576

512,349
24,089
37.763

$_ 145*t86 $___633J21 $ 8-07E2_lO $315.513-5,9 $_383*6tLJ39 S___5922t_t



The following table sets forth information regarding the nonaccrual status within the loan portfolio

20r6

$

Related
Allowance

$

49,985
200,025

3,712,353
689,836

20

l5

3,210,060
24,254

lnterest
Income

Recosnized

$

Residential real estate
Agriculture
Commercial real estate
Commercial
Consumer

December 3 l. 2016
Residential real estate
Agriculture
Commercial real estate
Commercial
Consumer

December 3 l. 2015
Residential real estate
Agriculture
Commercial real estate
Commercial
Consumer

Land
Land held for development
Bui lding and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Construction in process

$

$___4 0LU19 S___iAfi)A_

The following table sets forth information regarding impaired loans with a related allowance

Recorded
Investment

$

3,'112,353
889,86 I

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Average
Recorded

Investment

$

3,461,207
45 7,05 8

$

4,842,096
959,154

3 8,53 I
36,195

s_Asa2u $_5-801-250 $___250-01! $_3t18265 S _ _ 14J26

Recorded
Investment

$

3,210,060
24,254

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

$

194,946
6,063

Average Interest
Recorded Income

lnvestment Recognized

$

4,223,063
58,799

$ 281,908 $
2,119

3,304,211
155,285

$_i234A4 L428t362 $___201-009 $_iJ43-5X $

At December 31,2016 the Company had impaired loans totaling $2,240,575 with no related allowance.
At December 31,2015 the Company had irnpaired loans totaling $916,484 with no related allowance.
There were no loans modified as troubled debt restructurings within the previous fwelve months ended
December 31,2016 or 2015. Loans with carrying amounts of $0 and $619,834 were transferred to
foreclosed assets in 2016 and 201 5, respectively. The Company has no commitments to loan additional
funds to the borrowers of impaired or nonaccrual loans.

4. Premises and equipment
2016 2015

$ 3,679,503
366,431

10,528,625
4,765,826
5,101.560

$ 3,679,503
366,431

10,426,103
4,795,764
t.022.760

24,441,945 20,280,561
(9.697.567\Accumu lated depreciation and amort ization fl0 7.207\

$---I4;!&L738 $--10J82-994

The Company began construction of a new bank facility during 2015 at their Fort Worth location. The
construction was completed and the building occupied in January 2017.



5. Foreclosed assets

A summary of the balance of foreclosed assets at yeil end is presented below:

Residential real estate
Commercial real estate

Consumer

$

2016

446,507
646,000

2\

2015

$ 71,546,739
28,998,283

6,049,423
2,141,934
4,328,497

204.882

$ 10,023,065
8,099

$___r-092107 $__2J2E22D

6. Time deposits

The aggregate amount of time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC limits of $250,000 or more was

$25,556,682 and $21,900,579 at December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively. lnterest expense on time
deposits totaled 5982,246 in 2016 and $906,220 in 2015.

At December3l,2016 scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

$_11-3269-658

7. Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

The Company has a secured line of credit with the FHLB in the amount of $ I 72,822,349 at December 3 l,
2016 and $130,918,599 at December 31,2015, which is secured by FHLB stock, deposit accounts with the
FHLB, and a blanket lien on its outstanding loan portfolio.

The Company had outstanding borrowings of $10,031,164 and $37,110,966 frorn the FHLB at December
31,2016 and 2015, respectively, consisting of advances to provide the Bank funding for fixed-rate
mortgage loans and various other loans. These advances have maturities ranging from 201 7 through 201 8

and have interest rates ranging from 0.81% to 7 .22%o. [n connection with the total borrowings, the Bank
agreed to secure the advances with a blanket-floating lien. They have granted the FHLB collateral in first
lien mortgage residential loans, FHLB stock, and deposit accounts with the FHLB.

Future maturities of these borrowings are as follows:

2017
201 8

2019
2020
202t
More than 5 years

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Later years

$__ro*0luel
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8. Note payable

The Company entered into a note payable with a financial institution to fund the purchase of a bank. l'he
Company borrowed $6,000,000 on April 17,2008, interest floating at prime rate, which was 3.50% at

December 31,2015. The note called for quarterly interest payments beginrring July 16,2008 and seven

annual principal payments of $357,143 beginning April 10,2010. The Company paid $3,500,000 on the
principal in September 2008. The outstanding balance at December 31,2016 and 2015 lvas $0 and

$348,429 respectively. The note was unsecured, There was a separate loan agreement between the
financial institution and the Company whereby the Bank had to maintain financial ratios and various other
requirements and covenants. Management complied with all terms and believes it met or exceeded all
financial covenants.

9. Subordinated debentures

In September 2004, the Conrpany completed the private placement of $6,186,000 in subordinated
debentures to First Graham Statutory Trust I (Trust). The Trust funded the purclrase of the subordinated
debentures through the sale of trust preferred securities to Preferred Term Securities XV, Ltd. with a

liquidation value of $6,186,000. Using interest payments made by the Company on the debentures, the
Trust began paying quarterly dividends to preferred security holders on December 20,2004. The annual
percentage rate of the interest payable on the subordinated debentures and distributions payable on the
preferred securities had an initial rate of 4.17% and is variable at 3-Month LIBOR plus an interest factor,
not to exceed the maximum rate permitted by New York law, making the rate 3.l57ll%o and2.8695%o as

of December 31,2016. and 2015, respectively. Dividends on the preferred securities are cumulative and

the Trust may defer tlre payments for up to five years. The preferred securities mature on September 30,
2034 unless the Company elects and obtains regulatory approval to accelerate the maturity date.

Interest expense incurred on the subordinated debentures for the years ended December 3 l, 20 I 6 and 20 I 5
was $ 187,340 and $ 162,795, respectively.

Subordinated debt may be included in regulatory Tier 1 capital subject to a limitation that such amounts
not exceed 25.00% of Tier I capital. The remainder of subordinated debt is included in Tier II capital.
There is no limitation for inclusion of subordinated debt in total risk-based capital and, as such, all
subordinated debt was included in total risk-based capital.

I0. Treasula stock

Treasury stock is shown at cost and consists of 4,260 slrares in 2016 and 2015, of Company common
stock.

I l. Bank owned life insurance and deferred compensation

Tlre Company has invested in cost recovery life insurance. Policies were purchased with various carriers
on the lives of certain executive officers and directors participating in the defen-ed compensation plan
(Plan). The Bank is the sole owner and beneficiary of the life insurance policies. The amount of coverage
is designed to provide sufficient revenues to fund said Plan and the policy death benefit also indemnifies
the Bank against the death benefit provision of the Plan.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the accrued deferred compensation payable is $2,414,185 and

$2,080,883 respectively, and the cash sunender value of the life insurance is $13,998,430 and

$1 3,620,21 l, respectively.
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Executive officers and directors participating in the Plan can defer a poftion of their compensation. The
Company agreed to pay interest on the balance of deferred funds, to be adjusted every five years. lnterest
wasT%o at December 31,2016 and 2015. In addition, the agreements were amended to allow directors, as

of January 2004, the option to defer 100% of their compensation. The Company may elect to match the
deferred compensation of executive officers up to 5002, not to exceed $4,000 annually. ln2014, a director
deferral plan was offered to directors who had not previously been participating in a plan. The new Plan
allows directors to defer fees up to $ I 2,000 per year and is the same in all other respects. As of December
3l,20l6therewerel4directorsparticipatinginthenewPlan. ThreeareparticipatingundertheJanuary
2004 plan and are allowed to defer 100% of their fees.

12. Regulatora matters

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by the federal and state banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators
that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's and Bank's financial statements.
Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the
Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.
The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weighting, and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to
bank holding compan ies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the
Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations) to
risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital to average assets (as defined). Management
believes, as of December 31,2016 and 2015 that the Company and the Bank meet all capital adequacy
requirements to wlrich they are subject.

As of December 3 l, 2016, the Bank's capital ratios exceed those levels necessary to be categorized as well
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well
capitalized tlre Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios
as set forth in the following table. There are no conditions or events since that notification which
management believes would change the Bank's category.

Beginning January l, 2015, community banking organizations became subject to a new regulatory rule
recently adopted by federal banking agencies (commonly referred to Basel III). The new rule establishes a

new regulatory capital framework that incorporates revisions to the Basel capital fi'amework, strengthens
the definition of regulatory capital, increases risk-based capital requirements. and amends the
methodologies for determining risk-weighted organizations. Basel III includes a multiyear transition
period fi'om January l, 201 5 through December 31,2019.

Management believes that as of December 31, 2016, the Bank would meet all capital requirements under
the Basel III Capital rules on a fully phased-in basis as if such requirements were cumently in effect;
however, final rules are subject to regulatory discretion and could result in the need for additional capital
levels in the future. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes
have changed the Bank's category.

The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios and minimum amounts and ratios as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices are presented in the following table.
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Requirements

For Capital
Adequacy Purposes

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective
Action Provisions
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10.0%

6.5

8.0

5.0

Actual
Amount Ratio

As of December 3 l, 2016
Total Capitalto Risk

Weighted Assets:
Ciera Bank $ 66,880,000 15.08%

Common Equity Tier I
Capital(CETI) to Risk
Weighted Assets:

Ciera Bank 61,307,000 13.82
Tier I Capitalto Risk

Weighted Assets:
Ciera Bank 61,307,000 13.82

Tier I Capital to
Average Totals Assets:

Ciera Bank 61,307,000 I1.96

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

$ 35,485,000 8.0% $44,357,000 10.0%

19,961,000 4.5 28,832,000 6.5

26,614,000 6.0 35,485,000 8.0

20,507,000 4.0 25,634,000 5.0

As of December 3 l, 2015
TotalCapitalto Risk

Weighted Assets:
Ciera Bank $ 63,813,000

Common Equity Tier I
Capital(CETI) to Risk
Weighted Assets:

Ciera Bank 58,456,000
Tier I Capitalto Risk

Weighted Assets:
Ciera Bank 58,456,000

Tier I Capitalto
Average Totals Assets:

Ciera Bank 58,456,000

2017
201 8

2019
2020
2021 and thereafter

14.96%

13.70

t3.70

I 1.88

$ 34,128,000

19,197,000

25,596,000

19,682,000

$42,660,000

27,729,000

34,128,000

24,602,000

8.0%

4.5

6.0

4.0

13. Lease commitments

The Company leases land under a non-cancelable lease agreement expiring December 31,2047. The
monthly lease payment was $699 in 2016 and 2015. The monthly lease payment was adjusted January
1,2012 based on the change in the Consumer Price Index (CP!; and is to be adjusted every five years
thereafter. Future minimum rental paynents are calculated under the current CPI.

The Company has an operating lease agreement for a branch facility, with rent of $10,416 payable
monthly. The lease is for a tenn of 120 months, beginning July l, 2007 and expiring June 30, 2017. The
Company will be responsible for 25Yo of all taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses. (See Note 14.)

Approximate future minimum lease payments are as follows:

$ 72,931
10,246
8,886
8,886

239.909

$ 34[858
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The Company leases additional property and equipment on a quarterly or monthly basis. Rental expense
for all the operating leases for the years ended December 31,2016 and 201 5 was $469,229 and $298,799,
respectively.

14. Related-partytransactions

Ciera Bank has entered into agreements with l" in Graham Co. to lease ceftain banking facilities. The
lease provides for a term of twelve months, renewable January I of each year. All leases are accounted for
as operating leases and are eliminated upon consolidation. Net rent expense paid to l" in Graham Co. by
Ciera Bank amounted to $24,000 in20l6 and 2015.

Ciera Bank has an operating lease agreement with a company, whose member owner is a shareholder of
the Company and a director. Rent paid to this company amounted to 5124,992 and $ I 26,404 in 2016 and
2015, respectively, and future minimum lease paynents approximate$62,496 and $187,488 at December
31,2016 and December 31, 2015.

Ciera Bank has an operating lease agreement with a company, whose member owners are shareholders of
the Company and are directors. Rent paid to this company amounted to $303,750 and $135,000 in 2016
and 2015, respectively, and future minimum lease payments approximate $0 and $135,000 at December
31,2016 and 2015, respectively.

The aggregate amount of loans owed to Ciera Bank by directors, officers, and ernployees amounted to
approximately$10,402,512and $12,005,401 atDecember3l,2016 and20l5, respectively. During20l6.
new loans to such related parties amounted to $1,398,511 and repayments amounted to $3,001,400. All
transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same tenns and conditions,
including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions
with other customers, and did not, in the opinion of management, involve nrore than normal credit risk or
present other unfavorable features.

Ciera Bank held deposits of $6,75 1,713 for executive officers and directors at December 3 l, 2016.

Each year, the Company retains various legal counsel. Fees paid to related parfy legal counsel were
immaterial in 2016 and 2015,

Director and committee fees paid totaled $351,400 and $341,800 during 2016 and 2015, respectively
Deferred fees included in the above totaled $178,800 in2016 and 2015.

l5 Statements of cash flows

Supplemental cash flow information for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

2016 2015
Cash transactions:

Interest paid

Noncash investing and financing activities:

Change in unrealized security values
Other assets acquired through foreclosure

$ 1,865,428 $ 1,445,695

96,557
619,834

(1,636,247)
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16. Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Cornpany is involved in various other legal proceedings.
Management has concluded, based upon advice of counsel, that the result of these proceedings will not
have a material effect on the Company's financialcondition or results of operations.

17. Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk

Ciera Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of their customers. These financial instruments include stand-by letters of credit
and commitrnents to extend credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and
interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the financial statements. The Bank's exposure to
credit loss in the event of nonperformance is represented by the contractual amount of those
instruments. The Bank has not been required to perform on any financial guarantees and have not
incurred any losses on their commitments in either 2016 or 2015.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Cornmitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total conrrnitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank uses the
same credit policies in making comrnitments and conditional obligations as they do for on-balance-sheet
instruments. The Bank evaluates eaclr customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount
and type of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on
management's credit evaluation. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory,
property and equipment, and income producing commercial properties. The distribution of commitments
to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding.

Standby letters of credit are conditional cornmitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of
a customer to a third party. Standby letters of credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Those guarantees are issued primarily to supporl
public and private borrowing arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates
within one year. The credit risk involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Bank's policy of obtaining collateral, and the
nature of such collateral, is essentially the same as that involved in making commitments to extend credit.
Since many of the letters of credit and loan commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the
total contract amount does not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The distribution of
commitments on lines of credit approximates the distribution of Ioans outstanding.

Fair values for off-balance-sheet lending commitments are based on fees currently charged to enter into
similar agreements, considering the difference between current levels of interest rates and the commitled
rates and the counterpafties' credit standing. The fair value of these financial instruments is considered
insignificant. Additionally, these financial instruments have no carrying value.

The total amounts of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk as of December 31,2016 are as

follows:

Contract
Aurount

Commitments on lines of credit
Stand-by letters of credit

$ 93,090,045
4,949,056
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18. Fair value measurement

Authoritative guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market parlicipants. A fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the
asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The price in the principal (or most advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the
asset or liability shall not be adjusted for transaction costs. An orderly transaction is a transaction that
assumes exposure to tl-re market for a period prior to the measurement date to allow for marketing
activities that are usual and customary for transactions involving such assets and liabilities; it is not a
forced transaction. Market pamicipants are buyers and sellers in the principal market that are (i)
independent, (ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transact and (iv) willing to transact.

Authoritative guidance requires the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the market
approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other
relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and

liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash

flows or earnings, to a single present amount on a discounted basis. The cost approach is based on the

amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement costs).

Valuation techniques should be consistently applied.

Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market pafticipants would use in pricing the
asset or liability. Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions market
pafticipants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained frorn
independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those tlrat reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions
about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based ort

the best information available in the circurnstances. In that regard, authoritative guidance establishes a

fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities and tlre lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level I inputs - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
repofting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active,
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (for example, interest rates,

volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks and default rates) or inputs tlrat are derived
principally from or corroborated by observable rnarket data by correlation or other means.

Level 3 inputs - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as

well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth
below. In general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted
market prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use,

as inputs, observable market-based parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that
financial instruments are recorded at fair value. While management believes the Company's valuation
methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
rnethodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in
a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.
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Securities available for sale - Securities classified as available for sale are reported at fair value utilizing
Level I and Level 2 inputs. For these securities, the Company obtains fair value measurements from an
independent pricing service. The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include
dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, credit information and the
security's term and conditions, among other things.

Impaired loans - Impaired loans are reported atthe fair value of the underlying collateral if repayment is

expected solely from the collateral. Collateral values are estimated using Level 2 or Level 3 inputs
based on third party or internally developed appraisals.

Foreclosed assets - These assets are reported at estimated fair value, less estimated selling costs. Fair
value is based on third party or internally developed appraisals considering the assumptions in the
valuation and are considered Level 2 or Level 3 inputs.

At December 31,2016 and 2015 the Cornpany had no financial liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis.

Fair value of assets measured on a recurring basis at December 31,2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Fair Value Level I Level2 Level 3

Securities available for sale:
2016

U. S. Agency securities
Mortgage-backed securities
State and municipal securities

$_45JA0A67 $_46JA0A57 s

$ 1,000,898 $
35,895

45 703 674

$ 1,000,898 $
35,895

45-703-674

2015
U. S. Agency securities
Mortgage-backed securities
State and municipal securities

2016
Foreclosed assets

Impaired loans

2015
Foreclosed assets

lmpaired loans

5 999,749
3,852,159

48.755.805

$ $ 999,749 $
3,852,159

48.755.805

$__53=60LLt3 s f_r3-6072t3 s

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, that
is, the instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value
adjustments in ceftain circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment).

The following represents the carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair
value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31,2016 and 2015, segregated by the level of the
valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

Charges
Against

Allowance for
Loan losses

$

Charges
Against
Other

ExoenseLevel 1 LevelZ Level 3

$ - $ 1,092,507 $
4,352,204

$

$

$ - $ 2,728,229 $
3,033,305

$
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During the year ended December 31,2016, ceftain impaired loans were remeasured and reported at fair
value through a specific valuation allowance allocation of the allowance for possible loan losses based

trpon the fair value of the underlying collateral. Impaired loans with a carrying value of $4,602,214
were reduced by specific valuation allowance allocations totaling $250,010 to a total reported fair value
of $4,352,204 based on collateral valuations utilizing Level 3 valuation inputs.

During the year ended December 31,2015, certain impaired loans were remeasured and reported at fair
value through a specific valuation allowance allocation of the allowance for possible Ioan losses based

upon the fair value of the underlying collateral. Impaired loans with a carrying value of $3,234,314
were reduced by specific valuation allowance allocations totaling $201,009 to a totalreported fair value
of $3,033,305 based on collateralvaluations utilizing Level 3 valuation inputs.

The following table represents the Bank's Level 3 financial assets and liabilities, the valuation
techniques used to measure the fair value of those financial assets and liabilities, and the significant
unobservable inputs and the ranges ofvalues for those inputs:

2016 2015
Fair Value at

Principal
Valuation
Technique

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs

Range of
Significant

Inout Values

Impaired loans $ 4,352,204 $ 3,033,305
Appraisalof

collateral t0 -30%

Resulting gains and/or losses on foreclosed assets are included under other income or other expenses,
respectively.

Foreclosed real estate is valued at the time the loan is foreclosed upon and the asset is transferred to
foreclosed assets. The value is based primarily on third party appraisals, less costs to sell. Appraisals
based upon comparable sales result in Level 2 classification while appraisals based upon expected cash

flows of the property result in a Level 3 classification. The appraisals are generally discounted based on
management's historical knowledge, changes in market conditions from time of valuation, and/or
management's expeftise and knowledge of the client and client's business. Foreclosed real estate is

reviewed and evaluated on at least an annual basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly,
based on the same factors identified above.

The Company did not change the rnethodology used to determine fair value for any financial instruments
during the years ended December 31,2016 or 2015. Accordingly, for any given class of financial
instruments, the Company did not have any transfers between Level l, Level 2, or Level 3 during the
years ended December 31,2016 or 2015.

The Company is required under current authoritative accounting guidance to disclose the estimated fair
value of their financial instrument assets and liabilities including those subject to the requirements
discussed above. For the Company, as for most financial institutions, substantially all of its assets and
liabilities are considered financial instruments, as defined. Many of the Company's financial
instruments, however, lack an available trading market as characterized by a willing buyer and willing
seller engaging in an exchange transaction.

The estimated fair value amounts of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using
available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable
judgment is required to interpret data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates
presented herein are not necessarily indicative of tlre amounts the Company could realize in a current
market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a
material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Appraisal
adjustments
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ln addition, reasonable comparability between financial institutions may not be likely due to the wide
range of permiued valuation techniques and numerous estimates which must be made given the absence
of active secondary markets tbr many of the financial instruments. This lack of uniform valuatiott
methodologies also introduces a greater degree of subjectivity to these estimated fair values.

Cash and due from banks, federal funds, interest bearing deposits in banks, cash value life insurance,

restricted investments at cost and accrued interest are liquid in nature and considered Level I of the fair
value hierarchy.

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values
are based on carrying amounts. The fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses, based on interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of
sirnilar credit quality. Loan fair value estimates include judgments regarding future expected loss

experience and risk characteristics. Loans are considered Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank is estirnated using discounted cash
flow analyses based on the Bank's current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing
arrangements, The carrying amount of the note payable approximates fair value. The carrying amount
is typically used to estimate the fair value of variable rate debt with frequent repricing. The fair value of
guaranteed prefered beneficial interest in junior subordinated debentures approximates their carrying
amount. The carrying amount is typically used to estimate the fair value of variable rate debt with
frequent repricing. Advances and debt are considered a Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money market deposits is the amount
payable on demand at tlre reporting date. The carrying anrounts of variable rate, fixed-term money
market accounts and ceftificates of deposit approximate their fair value at the reporting date. Fair values
of fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies
interest rates currently being offered on ceftificates to a schedule or aggregated expected rnonthly
maturities on time deposits. This is considered to be a Level 3 instrument due to the unobservable inputs
of future deposit runoff, growth, and changes in interest rates.

Financial instruments with stated maturities have been valued using a present value discounted cash

flow with a discount rate approximating current market for similar assets and liabilities and are

considered Levels 2 and 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Finarrcial instrument liabilities with no stated
maturities have an estirnated fair value equal to both the amount payable on demand and the carrying
value and are considered Level I of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying value and the estirnated fair value of the Company's contractual off-balance-sheet
unfunded lines of credit, loan commitments and letters of credit, which are generally priced at market at
the time of funding, are not material.

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments at December 3l ,2016 and 2015 were
as follows:

2016 2015
Fair Value
Hierarchy

Carrying
nf

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Financial assets:

Cash and due from banks
Time deposits with banks
Loans, net
Cash value life insurance
Restricted investments, at cost
Accrued interest receivable

$ 24,448,963 $ 24,448,963

394,280,s70
t 3,998,430
2,912,043
1,772,801

410,171,56l,
13,998,430
2,912,043
l,'772,801

Level I

Level I

Level 3

Level I

Level I

Level I

$ 46,575,930 S

490,000
373,270,830

13,620,211
2,784,619
1,841,542

46,575,930
490,000

388,519,695
13,620,211
2,784.619
1,841,542
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l6 20t5
Fair Value
Hierarchy

Carrying
Amount

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Fair
Value

Financial Liabilities:

Deposits
Non-interest bearing
Interest bearing

Advances from Federal
Home I-oan Bank

Note payable
Guaranteed prefened

benefi ciaI interest in junior
subordinated debentures

Accrued interest payable

Level I
Level 3

Level2
Level2

Level2
Level I

6, I 86,000
221,643

6,186,000
221,643

6,I 86,000
185,670

37,1 15,000
348,429

6, r 86,000
185,670

$ 143,949,533 $ 143,949,533 $ 148,274,870 $ 148,274,870
284,526,761 284,388,828 259,121,082 259,160,082

10,03 r,164 10,031,t64 37,110,966
- 348,429

There is no material difference between the notional amount and the estimated fair value of off-balance
sheet unfunded loan commitments which are generally priced at market at the time of funding. Letters
of credit have an estimated fair value based on fees currently charged for similar arrangements. Fees

related to the unexpired term of the letters of credit are not significant.


